
AGENDA 
Utility Management Review Board 

April 7, 2016 
10:00 am 

Room 31, Legislative Plaza 
301 Sixth Avenue North 

(6th Avenue between Charlotte Avenue and Union Street) 
Nashville, Tennessee 

Call to Order 

Approval of minutes December 3, 2015 

Cases – Financial Distress  Bangham Utility District Putnam/Jackson Counties 

Status – Financial Distress  Lakeview Utility District Hawkins County 
Witt Utility District  Hamblen County 

Status – Investigation Cookeville Boat Dock Road Utility District Putnam County 

Cases – Water Loss  Saltillo Utility District Sullivan County 
Bristol-Bluff City Utility District Sullivan County 

Status – Water Loss Holston Utility District Sullivan County 

Petition:  Hallsdale-Powell Utility District Knox County  

Customer Complaint Stroop v. Winchester Center Grove UD 
Hood. v. Ocoee UD 

Miscellaneous: Conflict of Interest  
Annual Water Loss Report  
Complaint Statistics 
Next UMRB regular meeting 
Open Discussion 

Visitors to the Legislative Plaza are required to pass through a metal detector and must present photo identification.  Individuals with 
disabilities who wish to participate in this meeting or to review filings should contact the Office of Administration, Comptroller of the 
Treasury, to discuss any auxiliary aids or services need to facilitate such participation.  Such contact may be in person or by writing, 
telephone or other means, and should be made prior to the scheduled meeting date to allow time to provide such aid or service.  
Contact the Office of the Comptroller (John Greer) for further information. 

505 Deaderick Street, Suite 1700 
James K. Polk State Office Building 

Nashville, TN  37243-1402 
Telephone (615) 401-7879 

Fax (615) 741-1551 
John.Greer@cot.tn.gov 

Pg. 12

Pg. 30
Pg. 58

Pg. 71

Pg. 267
Pg. 269
Pg. 286
Pg. 287

Pg. 80
Pg. 87

Pg. 95

Pg. 103

Pg. 119
Pg. 120

Pg. 4

1

mailto:John.Greer@cot.tn.gov


WARREN

RUTHERFORD

WILSONDAVIDSON

WILLIAMSON

ROBERTSON
MONTGOMERY

DICKSON

STEWART

HOUSTON

HICKMAN

HUMPHREYS

COFFEE
BEDFORD

MAURY

GILES

LAWRENCE

WAYNE

LEWIS
PERRY

HARDIN

HENDERSON

HENRY
WEAKLEY

OBION

DYER

GIBSON

MADISONHAYWOOD

TIPTON

FAYETTESHELBY  HARDEMAN

CHESTER

MCNAIRY

CARROLL

SUMNER

MACON

SMITH

CLAY

PUTNAM

WHITE

GRUNDY

LINCOLN FRANKLIN MARION

BLEDSOE

CUMBERLAND

OVERTON

PICKETT

FENTRESS

MORGAN

SCOTT
CAMPBELL

DEKALB

UNION

KNOX

ROANE

RHEA

HAMILTON
BRADLEY

MCMINN

POLK

MONROE

LOUDON BLOUNT

SEVIER

JEFFERSON

HAWKINS

CARTER

GREENE

COCKE

UMRB

Bangham Utility District
Cookeville Boat 

Dock Road 

Utility District

Saltillo Utility 

District

Bristol-Bluff 

City Utility 

District

Witt Utility 

District

JACKSON

Lakeview Utility 

District

Holston

Utility District

Hallsdale-Powell 

Utility District

2



Approval of Minutes

December 3, 2015

3



MINUTES 
of the 

UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
December 3, 2015 

10:40 am 

Chair Ann Butterworth detected a quorum and called to order the meeting of the Utility Management 
Review Board (Board) in Room 31 of the Legislative Plaza in Nashville, Tennessee. 

Board members present and constituting a quorum: 
Ann Butterworth, Chair, Comptroller Designee 
Tom Moss, Vice-Chair, Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC) Commissioner Designee 
Pat Riley, Gibson County Utility District Manager 
Rebecca Hunter, Hixson Utility District Commissioner 
Kevin Botts, Consumer Representative 
Bruce Giles, First Utility District of Knox County Manager 
Jim Hunter, West Wilson Utility District Commissioner 
Jason West, Second South Cheatham Utility District Commissioner 

Members Absent: 
Tim Pelham, West Warren Viola Utility District Manager 

Staff Present: 
Joyce Welborn, Comptroller’s Office 
John Greer, Comptroller’s Office 

Counsel Present: 
Betsy Knotts, Comptroller’s Office 

Ms. Butterworth noted that the meeting would begin with AGENDA #1.  The Water and Wastewater 
Financing Board was present for this meeting.   

Tennessee Water Loss Regulatory History 
 Ms. Welborn provided a brief history of the water loss regulatory environment in Tennessee.  

AWWA Methodology 
Mr. Chris Leauber with the Water and Wastewater Authority of Wilson County presented a brief overview 
of the AWWA spreadsheet and reporting structure.   

Water Research Foundation 
Water loss data from Tennessee was included in the Water Research Foundation’s annual report.  This 
data showed Tennessee to be in a strong position compared to other similar states.  Tennessee also had 
one of the lowest percentages of unusable data.   

4



Presentation of Draft Validity Score Non-Compliance Questionnaire  
Mr. Leauber presented the draft Validity Score Non-Compliance Questionnaire.  No action was taken by 
the Board.   
 
Presentation of Draft Non-Revenue Water Non-Compliance Questionnaire 
Mr. Leauber presented the draft Non-Revenue Water Non-Compliance Questionnaire.  No action was 
taken by the Board.   
 
Ms. Butterworth recessed the meeting at 11:30am.  The meeting was called back in to order at 11:45 am, 
to discuss the items on AGENDA #2.  Ms. Butterworth asked members and staff to introduce themselves, 
and noted this was the last meeting for Ms. Welborn.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
Ms. Butterworth stated that the first item on AGENDA #2 was the consideration of the minutes of the 
August 6, 2015 meeting.  Ms. Hunter moved approval of the minutes with no changes.  Mr. Giles seconded 
the motion, which was unanimously approved.   
 
Ms. Knotts read the mission of the Board and the conflict of interest statement. 
 
Cases – Financial Distress 
Mr. Greer presented the following financial distress cases: 
 
Quebeck-Walling Utility District 
The Quebeck Walling Utility District has been reported to the Board as having two consecutive years with 
a negative net change in net position in its water system as of December 31, 2014.  There were unexpected 
expenses in 2013 and 2014 due to the auditor for the District deciding to expense all new meters instead 
of capitalizing them.  
 
Effective September 1, 2015, the District raised rates by 10%.  This was the first rate increase since 2009.  
The increased revenues and decreased expenses have the District projecting a positive net change in net 
position for the 2015 fiscal year.  
 
Mr. Giles moved to endorse, by formal order, the actions by Quebeck-Walling Utility District.  Mr. Botts 
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.   
 
Fall River Road Utility District 
The Fall River Road Utility District has been reported to the Board as having two consecutive years with a 
negative net change in net position in its water system as of December 31, 2014.  Effective September 1, 
2015, the District raised rates 10% across the Board.  The City of Lawrenceburg has also been contacted 
to review a possible consolidation. 
 
Mr. West moved to endorse, by formal order, the actions of Fall River Road Utility District.  Mr. Riley 
Seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.   
 
 
 
 

5



Grandview Utility District  
The Grandview Utility District has been reported to the Board for having two consecutive years with a 
negative net change in net position in its water system as of December 31, 2014.  The District increased 
rates approximately 15% in January of 2015 and 10% in October of 2015.  The District is ready to increase 
rates again in January of 2016 if there is still a negative net change in net position in the audit. 
 
Ms. Hunter moved, by formal order, to endorse the actions of Grandview Utility District.  Mr. Giles 
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.   
 
Hornbeak Utility District 
The Hornbeak Utility District has been reported to the Board for having two consecutive years with a 
negative net change in net position in its water system as of April 30, 2015.   
 
Hornbeak has suffered financial losses partially due to legal expenses related to a lawsuit brought by 
Reelfoot Utility District to stop Samburg Utility District from becoming a customer.  The Court ruled in 
favor of Hornbeak and Samburg Utility Districts (opinion dated August 27, 2014).  The Tennessee State 
Supreme Court denied hearing the appeal in January 2015.  Hornbeak Utility District has begun serving 
Samburg Utility District.   
 
Effective May 1, 2015, the District increased rates approximately 30%.  The District also raised tap fees 
from $350 to $550 at the same time.  The District is projecting an additional $61,490 annually from water 
purchase contract with Samburg Utility District, with $47,450 guaranteed. 
 
Mr. Botts moved to endorse, by formal order, the actions of Hornbeak Utility District.  Mr. Riley seconded 
the motion, which passed unanimously.   
 
Cookeville Boat Dock Road Utility District 
The Cookeville Boat Dock Road Utility District was reported to the Board as having two consecutive years 
with a negative net change in net position in its water system as of December 31, 2014.  The majority of 
expenses are attributed to a maintenance agreement with H & H Underground.  There is no set contract 
in place and commissioners refuse to look at any alternative options.  The manager and new Certified 
Public Accountant have stressed that costs could be cut significantly by shifting maintenance in-house or 
bidding out projects. 
 
The following individuals were present on behalf of the District: 
 
Shawn Frye – Counsel 
Kendra Saunders – Accountant 
Robin Hawkins – Office Manager 
Danny Burgess – Board Chairman 
 
On February 1, 2015, the District raised the base rate by 25% and the overage rate by approximately 25%.  
The District is currently securing grant and loan funding to make needed repairs to the system and 
implement radio read meters.   
 

• The UMRB expressed a significant concern over the size of the District’s customer base 
and the amount of District funds appropriated to H & H Underground.  

 

6



• The UMRB strongly recommended that the District utilize other resources to bid out
vendors during the 6-month period of the investigation and to inform the UMRB of the
District’s decisions and any related documentation throughout the entire bidding
process.

• The UMRB encouraged the District to move towards successful implementation and
compliance with the District’s newly adopted policies and to keep the UMRB informed
of every material matter during the 6-month investigation period.

Mr. Giles moved to initiate an investigation with a six month time parameter.  Mr. Botts seconded the 
motion, which passed unanimously.   

Status – Financial Distress 
Mr. Greer explained that status reports are presented simply to update the Board on certain matters 
specific to the entities involved.  No action is taken unless specified by members.  The entities will continue 
to be monitored by the Board until compliance is reached.  Mr. Greer presented the following cases: 

The Board Chair accepted the case of Bedford County out of order due to the county’s representatives’ 
presence and availability to discuss their case.  

Bedford County Utility District 
The Bedford County Utility District has been reported to the Board as having at least eleven consecutive 
years with a deficit total net position in its gas system as of June 30, 2014.   

At the previous meeting, Mr. Botts moved that staff create a draft order for the Board to review at the 
December meeting.  This order would contain bench marks for the District to meet in a timely fashion. 
Mr. Riley seconded the motion, which was approved unanimously.   

Ms. Knotts presented a draft order with the benchmarks requested by Mr. Botts. 

Ms. Hunter moved to formalize, by order, the draft presented by Ms. Knotts.  Mr. Riley seconded the 
motion, which passed unanimously.   

Customer Complaint 
Stroop v. Winchester Center Grove Utility District 
Terry and Twila Stroop presented their complaint.  David Stafford, District manager, presented the Utility 
District’s response.  The Board discussed the case but did not have adequate information to make a 
decision.   

Mr. Giles moved to defer action until the next Board meeting.  Ms. Hunter seconded the motion, which 
carried unanimously.   

Fiduciary Duty Legislation 
Mr. Clay Byrd from the Comptroller’s Office of General Counsel presented the proposed legislation which 
was requested by the Board at its last meeting.  The legislation more clearly defines fiduciary 
responsibility.     

7



Ms. Hunter moved to endorse the draft legislation.  Mr. Moss seconded the motion which passed 
unanimously.   
 
Clay Gas Utility District 
The Clay County Gas Utility District was reported to the Board for being in default on certain debt 
instruments.  The District has attempted to pay all bond holders pennies on the dollar of the total debt 
outstanding.  This buyback has been successful, except for two main bond holders refusing to take a 
reduced amount.  The District has run out of options, and there are concerns that they cannot raise rates 
and still be competitive against propane providers. 
 
Mr. Riley moved to initiate an investigation with a six month parameter.  Mr. Giles seconded the motion, 
which passed unanimously.   
 
Witt Utility District 
At the previous Board meeting, Mr. Moss moved that the District update the Board on the progress of all 
construction and submit a corrected AWWA Reporting Worksheet by the December meeting.  Mr. Riley 
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.   
 
No information was submitted by the District, despite repeated efforts by staff. 
 
Mr. Hunter moved, by formal order, that all information previously requested be sent to staff no later 
than January 1, 2016. Additionally, the manager and Board of Witt Utility District be required to attend 
the February 4, 2016 Board meeting.  Ms. Hunter seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.   
 
Chanute Pall-Mall Utility District 
The Chanute Pall-Mall Utility District met on October 1, 2015 to discuss and formally adopt policies as 
required by the Board.  The adoption of policies at their board meeting in February was erroneously left 
out of the minutes.  They have also worked diligently to erase all debts for nonpayment of bills.  
 
The Board took no action. 
 
Iron City Utility District  
The Iron City Utility District has been reported to the Board as having at least fourteen consecutive years 
with a negative change in net position as of December 31, 2014.  Iron City Utility District voted to 
consolidate with the City St. Joseph.  These consolidation talks have failed.  The District has gone from a 
1,000 gallon minimum bill, to a 2,000 gallon minimum bill.  This change offset part of the rate increase 
that the District implemented in May 2015. 

Mr. Moss moved to initiate an investigation of Iron City Utility District with a six month parameter.  Mr. 
Riley seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.     

Mooresburg Utility District 
The Mooresburg Utility District was reported to the Board as having at least two consecutive years with a 
negative change in net position as of December 31, 2014.  Mooresburg Utility District last appeared before 
the Board on December 4, 2014.  Staff requested an update from the District on October 15, 2015, and 
the materials were included in the packet.   

8



The Board took no action.   

 
Investigative Reports  
Ms. Knotts presented updates on the following investigative reports: 
Webb Creek Utility District 
At the previous meeting, the Board requested a written update on the status of all reimbursements to the 
District relating to the investigative findings.   
 
Ms. Knotts provided an oral update, and no action was taken by the Board.   
 
Cherokee Hills Utility District 
Mr. Giles moved to amend and restate the formal order to allow the District to complete all items on the 
corrective action plan by December 31, 2016.  Ms. Hunter seconded the motion, which passed 
unanimously.   
 
Lone Oak Utility District 
Ms. Knotts provided an oral update, and no action was taken by the Board.   
  
Water Loss – Cases 
Mr. Greer explained that water loss cases are presented simply to inform the Board on certain matters 
specific to the entities involved.  No action is taken unless specified by members.  The entities will continue 
to be monitored by the Board until compliance is reached.  Mr. Greer presented the following cases: 
 
Harbor Utility District 
Harbor Utility District was referred to the Board for having a low validity score of 70. 
 
No action was taken by the Board.   
 
Holston Utility District 
Holston Utility District was referred to the Board for having excessive non-revenue water of 48.2%.  
 
Mr. Moss moved that District provide a corrected AWWA worksheet and information on the cost of 
purchased water.  Ms. Hunter seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.   
 
Petition 
 
Fall Creek Falls Utility District 
The District filed a petition for recreation.  This is a filing only, and no action is required by the Board.   
 
Miscellaneous 
 
Approval of Rules 
Ms. Knotts presented the draft rules which the Board members received via email in October.  The rewrite 
of the rules is basically a streamlining of the current rules in place. Ms. Welborn suggested that 
unaccounted for water be changed to non-revenue water in all applicable places. 
 

9



With the suggested changes, the board unanimously promulgated the rules via roll call vote and directed 
counsel to complete the remainder of the rulemaking process. 

A compliance list was included in the packet which showed Minor Hill Utility District and O’Connor Utility 
District as compliant.   

A compilation of customer complaint statistics and a list of utility districts under the jurisdiction of the 
Board were included in the packet.   

Commissioner training approvals were filed with the Board.  

Proposed 2016 Meeting Schedule 
Ms. Hunter moved, by resolution, to set the 2016 meeting schedule as follows: 

Thursday, February 04, 2016 
Thursday, April 07, 2016 
Thursday, June 02, 2016 
Thursday, August 04, 2016 
Thursday, October 06, 2016 
Thursday, December 01, 2016 

Mr. Giles seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

Chair Butterworth adjourned the meeting at 2:00pm.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Ann Butterworth 
Chair  

10



Cases

Financial Distress

11



UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD 
Case Study 

Case:  Bangham Utility District 
President:  Marty Woolbright 
Customers:  2,874 
Validity Score: 80 
Non-revenue water  17.20% 

The Bangham Utility District has been reported to the Board for having two consecutive years 
with a negative net change in net position in its water system as of June 30, 2015.  The financial 
and rate history is reflected on the attached sheet.  

The District has taken the following steps to correct its financial deficiencies: 
• Reduced the minimum bill from 3,000 gallons to 2,000 gallons
• Changed renter and multi-unit rate structures
• Implemented tap fee of $950
• Implemented $30 non-refundable connection fee
• Stopped accepting security deposits
• Comprehensively studied fees and charges

Staff recommends the Board endorse, by formal order, the actions of the Bangham 
Utility District. 

12



 Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
Fiscal Year 6/30 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Water Revenue 848,389$   832,478$   852,064$   845,607$   922,167$   876,897$   867,808$   
Tap Fees 24,641$     23,664$     16,425$     16,376$     23,952$     22,959$     18,561$     
Interest 1,396$       973$          1,364$       1,026$       1,726$       251$          134$          
Other Revenues 30,830$     22,883$     32,236$     17,272$     33,767$     23,871$     23,616$     
Total Operating Revenues 905,256$ 879,998$ 902,089$ 880,281$ 981,612$ 923,978$ 910,119$ 

Operating Expenses 856,701$ 841,851$ 800,081$ 832,907$ 868,910$ 924,603$ 926,928$ 

Operating Income 48,555$   38,147$   102,008$ 47,374$   112,702$ (625)$       (16,809)$  

Interest Expense (13,466)$    (9,485)$      (19,357)$    (25,137)$    (18,399)$    (8,535)$      (5,422)$      
Capital Contributions 13,803$     -$              22,179$     -$              18,428$     -$              

Change in Net Position 48,892$   28,662$   104,830$ 22,237$   112,731$ (9,160)$    (22,231)$  

Supplemental Information
Principal payment 234,438$   23,623$     179,616$   5,326$       243,357$   116,533$   48,542$     
Depreciation 102,889$   112,567$   116,987$   117,505$   116,182$   106,598$   105,428$   

Water Rates
First 3,000 gallons 16.23$       16.23$       16.23$       16.23$       16.62$       16.62$       16.62$       
All over 5.41$         5.41$         5.41$         5.41$         5.54$         5.54$         5.54$         
Customers 2,881         2,722         2,741         2,762         2,785         2,833         2,874         
Water Loss 36.64% 29.63% 24.63% 21.84%
Non-Revenue Water 19.30% 16.90% 17.20%
Validity Score 80 80 80

Bangham Utility District
HISTORY FILE

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



Status

Financial Distress

28



Status updates are presented for informational 
purposes only.  No action is required by the 
Board. 

29



UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD 
Status Update 

 
Case:    Lakeview Utility District 
Manager:   Tim Carwile 
Customers:   1,484 
Validity Score:  77 
Non-revenue water  3.50% 
 
 
The Lakeview Utility District has been reported to the Board for having two consecutive years 
with a negative net change in net position in its water system as of December 31, 2014.  The 
financial and rate history is reflected on the attached sheet.  
 
The District raised rates effective January 1, 2016.  
 
 

30



 Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
Fiscal year ended 12/31 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Water revenues 584,763$   595,083$     638,221$   720,790$   762,807$   762,149$  746,260$ 782,503$    789,123$  798,812$  885,046$ 
Other revenues 76,021$     75,824$       84,172$     122,214$   91,638$     74,463$    102,973$ 65,323$      104,370$  63,526$    73,649$   

Total Operating Revenues 660,784$   670,907$     722,393$   843,004$   854,445$   836,612$  849,233$ 847,826$    893,493$  862,338$  958,695$ 

Total Operating Expenses 613,427$   629,245$     721,627$   816,036$   843,140$   868,204$  826,989$ 843,559$    838,899$  858,409$  890,597$ 

Operating Income 47,357$     41,662$       766$          26,968$     11,305$     (31,592)$   22,244$   4,267$        54,594$    3,929$      68,098$   

Interest Expense 55,343$     70,617$       94,887$     112,925$   92,908$     90,285$    88,536$   104,898$    159,765$  155,719$  156,510$ 

TCA Reportable Income (7,986)$      (28,955)$     (94,121)$    (85,957)$    (81,603)$    (121,877)$ (66,292)$  (100,631)$   (105,171)$ (151,790)$ (88,412)$  

Capital Contributions/Grants 314,637$   1,472,827$ 149,144$   1,106,658$ 106,200$  72,142$    

Change in Net Position 306,651$   1,443,872$ 55,023$     (85,957)$    (81,603)$    (121,877)$ (66,292)$  1,006,027$ 1,029$      (79,648)$   (88,412)$  

Supplemental Information
Principal payment 36,789$     37,920$       45,172$     61,224$     86,372$     51,665$    54,208$   80,137$      93,553$    89,102$    96,530$   
Depreciation 120,038$   126,051$     154,505$   202,172$   204,565$   169,415$  170,064$ 186,111$    243,043$  253,763$  250,944$ 

Water Rates
Residential
first 1,000 gallons 14.75$       15.50$         18.00$       19.00$       21.00$       21.00$      21.00$     22.50$        23.00$      24.00$      25.00$     
over 1,500 gallons 7.50$         7.55$           7.80$         8.50$         8.75$         
1,000 - 5,000 gallons 8.75$        8.75$       9.00$          9.30$        9.40$        9.40$       
5,001 - 10,000 gallons 9.63$        9.63$       9.90$          10.23$      10.34$      10.34$     
10,001 - 15,000 gallons 10.94$      10.94$     11.25$        11.63$      11.75$      11.75$     
15,001 - 20,000 gallons 13.13$      13.13$     13.50$        13.95$      14.10$      14.10$     
over 20,000 gallons 15.31$      15.31$     15.75$        16.28$      16.45$      16.45$     
Customers 1,453         1,463         1,463         1,421        1,411       1,425          1,437        1,446        1,484       
Water Loss 29.14% 27.95% 24.38% 34.34%
Non-Revenue Water 3.80% 2.70% 3.50%
Validity Score 74 74 77

LAKEVIEW UTILITY DISTRICT
HISTORY FILE

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



Status

Investigation

70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



Cases

Water Loss

78



Water loss cases are presented for 
informational purposes only.  No action 
is required by the Board. 

79



80



81



82



From: Brandon Harrington
To: John Greer
Subject: Questionnaire and plan for low validity score
Date: Sunday, February 28, 2016 9:20:42 PM
Attachments: water loss.docx

Dear Mr. Greer,
I am attaching the questionnaire and plan to resolve the low validity score concerning the Saltillo Utility District. I
 will also be sending one by mail to the Utility Management Review Board. I would like to request a change of
 address for future correspondence. It needs to be as follows:

Brandon Harrington, Manager
PO Box 36
or
310 Main. St.
Saltillo, TN 38370

Thank you,
Brandon Harrington
Saltillo Utility District
Saltillo, TN 38370

83

mailto:brandonkharrington@yahoo.com
mailto:John.Greer@cot.tn.gov

Checklist for Addressing Water Loss

Saltillo Utility District

1. Are you billing for all general government water use? Yes, the utility district bills everyone on the distribution system.  

2. [bookmark: _GoBack]Are you accounting for the water used by the water and or sewer department?   We do not have a sewer system. However, we account for flushing lines.

3. Do you periodically check or inspect check or inspect all 2” and larger meters? Yes, meters are read monthly but not tested for accuracy. 

4. Do you have a recalibration policy procedure in place? No

5. Do you have a meter replacement policy? Yes, meters are sometimes replaced that are 10 years or older or meters that are suspected of inaccuracy.

6. Do you have a process to inspect for unauthorized consumption? Yes, physical inspection is used to inspect for unauthorized consumption on a regular basis. Cases are reported to the board of directors. 

7. Do you have a leak detection program currently in place? Yes, physical inspection of the distribution system on a daily basis, as well as monitored usage through the plant.

8. Do you have written policies, including a policy for billing adjustments? Are the written policies followed correctly by all levels of staff? Yes, policy is customers can receive 1 adjustment per year. A written letter has to be submitted to the board of directors in order to be able to qualify for an adjustment. Customers to have to pay first 100.00 and after the initial 100 they pay .53 cents per thousand gallons. The policy is followed very strictly. 

9. Do you have authorized non-customer users? Do you account for the use? Do you have a method for the user to report water usage? Yes, we have 3 volunteer fire departments using water within our system. They are supposed to report all usage as accurately as possible. We account for the use, barring that the usage is reported properly. It is our suspicion that in many instances it isn’t always reported. They are to email or fax their water usage to the utility district.

10. Is your system zoned to isolate water loss? No, we do not have zoning in our distribution system.

11. Do you search for leaks at night when there is little traffic or small household usage? Yes, when necessary.

12. Do you or can you control pressure surges? No, we cannot control pressure surges.

13. Do you have or have access to leak detection? No, we do not have any leak detection equipment.

14. What is your policy for notifying the customer they have a leak? Customers are notified by telephone or personally. Most of the time, I notify customers in person.

15. Do you have a public relations program to encourage citizens to report leaks? No, we do not have a public relations program. However, our customers are encouraged to report leaks they see. The president of the Utility District prints his home phone number on the water bills to encourage citizens to call if they see something that needs to be reported. 

16. Do you have a policy to prosecute water theft or meter tampering/damage? No, the board currently does not have a policy in place. 

17. What is the monetary value of the lost water? Annual cost of real losses, 5,675.00

18. Is the cost to repair the leak justified based on the amount of water being lost? Yes, all leaks fixed are justifiable.













































Plan for Resolution of Water Loss for Saltillo Utility District

Due to the low validity score the Saltillo Utility District has started having the master meter at the water plant professionally tested by Rye Engineering. We have agreed to continue to do so every year or have the meter recalibrated. 

Being able to receive credit for this testing on the AWWA Water Loss report would have and should substantially increase our score on this report and bring our score well above the State’s minimum requirements. 





84



85



86



 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Justin P. Wilson 
Comptroller of the Treasury

MEMORANDUM

TO: Utility Management Review Board

FROM:

SUBJECT:  Division of Local Government Audit Referral Pursuant to

In accordance with the requirements of Tennessee Code Annotated, we are hereby filing the following vendor with the board(s) 
noted above.

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT

DIVISION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUDIT

TCA 7-82-401(h)

Division of Local Government Audit - Municipalities and Utility Districts

Record Number

2902

Date Referred

7/23/2015
Reviewer

mlb

Vendor Name

Bristol-Bluff City Suburban Utility District

Report Year

7/31/2014 Type of UtilityWater

A
B

C

Has deficit net position for the fiscal year ended.

Decrease in net position for two consecutive years.

Is in default on certain outstanding debt.

Fiscal 
Year End Decrease in NP 

Holders of the Bonds, etc. Principal Interest

Date Received

6/2/2015

FINANCIAL DISTRESS

WATER LOSS

D Water Loss Referral

Comments:

Water Loss Schedule - Status

Utility Type Report Status
Not Yet Reviewed

Component Unit

AWWA Excel File

Validity score below the amount established by the board
Validity Score

84

AWWA water audit info

Non-Rev Water %

58.1
Excessive non-revenue water % as established by the board
(Non-Revenue Water as Percent by Cost of Operating System)

Form Revised February 2013

87



88



From: Eddie.Lawrence@bwsc.net
To: John Greer
Cc: Tina Grindstaff (tgrindstaff@bbcud.net)
Subject: Bristol Bluff City Utility District FY 13-14 AWWA Water Audit
Date: Monday, February 22, 2016 9:39:59 AM
Attachments: BBCUD FY13-14 AWWA Water Audit.pdf

John,
 
I was contacted by Tina Grindstaff, General Manager for the Bristol-Bluff City Utility District, to
 review and make any necessary revisions and corrections to the District’s FY 13-14 AWWA Water
 Audit.  Please see attached.    
 
Upon completion of my review, I found numerous errors that needed to be revised.   Line items in
 the AWWA Water Audit that were revised or corrected included:
 

·         Water Exported – This volume was previously included in the Billed metered line item.
·         Billed Metered – This volume previously included the Water Exported line item.
·         Length of mains – Corrected the length based on data from the system’s hydraulic water

 model.
·         Number of active and inactive service connections – Corrected the number based on

 information provided in the District’s FY 13-14 Financial Audit.
·         Average operating pressure - Corrected the length based on data from the system’s

 hydraulic water model.
·         Total annual cost of operating water system - Corrected the number based on information

 provided in the District’s FY 13-14 Financial Audit.
·         Customer retail cost (applied to Apparent Losses) - Corrected the number based on

 information provided in the District’s FY 13-14 Financial Audit.
·         Variable production cost (applied to Apparent Losses) - Corrected the number based on

 information provided in the District’s FY 13-14 Financial Audit.
 
Additionally, I used the software’s default “Variable Production Cost to Value Real Losses” instead of
 the “Customer Retail Unit Cost to Value Real Losses” calculation option based on the guidance
 provided in the AWWA software which states:
 
“The cost to produce and supply the next unit of water (e.g., $/million gallons).  This cost is determined by
 calculating the summed unit costs for ground and surface water treatment and all power used for
 pumping from the source to the customer.  It may also include other miscellaneous unit costs that apply
 to the production of drinking water.  It should also include the unit cost of bulk water purchased as an
 import if applicable.

It is common to apply this unit cost to the volume of Real Losses.  However, if water resources are
 strained and the ability to meet future drinking water demands is in question, then the water auditor can
 be justified in applying the Customer Retail Rate to the Real Loss volume, rather than applying the
 Variable Production Cost.

The Free Water Audit Software applies the Variable Production costs to Real Losses by default. 
 However, the auditor has the option on the Reporting Worksheet to select the Customer Retail Cost as
 the basis for the Real Loss cost evaluation if the auditor determines that this is warranted.”

89

mailto:Eddie.Lawrence@bwsc.net
mailto:John.Greer@cot.tn.gov
mailto:tgrindstaff@bbcud.net











 
Based on the guidance provided in AWWA Water Audit software, “Variable Production Cost to Value Real
 Losses” is the correct calculation method for the District
 
Lastly, I revised the data grading inputs based on my professional judgement with Ms. Grindstaff’s input
 based on her knowledge of the District’s daily operations.  The data grading inputs directly influence the
 AWWA’s Water Audit’s Validity Score.  Therefore, based on these revision’s a new Data Validity value
 has been calculated by the software and is provided in the attachment.
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or need additional information.
  
Sincerely,
 
Eddie Lawrence, PE
Senior Project Manager

Barge Waggoner Sumner & Cannon, Inc. 
Four Sheridan Square, Suite 100
Kingsport, Tennessee  37660
(423) 247-5525    phone
eddie.lawrence@bwsc.net
bargewaggoner.com  |  Twitter  |  LinkedIn
 

90

mailto:eddie.lawrence@bwsc.net
http://www.bargewaggoner.com/
http://www.twitter.com/bargewaggoner
http://www.linkedin.com/company/barge-waggoner-sumner-and-cannon-inc-


91



92



Status 

Water Loss 

93



Water loss status updates are presented 
for informational purposes only.  No 
action is required by the Board. 

94



 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Justin P. Wilson 
Comptroller of the Treasury

MEMORANDUM

TO: Utility Management Review Board

FROM:

SUBJECT:  Division of Local Government Audit Referral Pursuant to

In accordance with the requirements of Tennessee Code Annotated, we are hereby filing the following vendor with the board(s) 
noted above.

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT

DIVISION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUDIT

TCA 7-82-401(h)

Division of Local Government Audit - Municipalities and Utility Districts

Record Number

2915

Date Referred

9/1/2015
Reviewer

irh

Vendor Name

Holston Utility District

Report Year

2/28/2015 Type of UtilityWater

A
B

C

Has deficit net position for the fiscal year ended.

Decrease in net position for two consecutive years.

Is in default on certain outstanding debt.

Fiscal 
Year End Decrease in NP 

Holders of the Bonds, etc. Principal Interest

Date Received

8/11/2015

FINANCIAL DISTRESS

WATER LOSS

D Water Loss Referral

Comments:

Water Loss Schedule - Status

Utility Type Report Status
Not Yet Reviewed

Component Unit

AWWA Excel File

Validity score below the amount established by the board
Validity Score

90

AWWA water audit info

Non-Rev Water %

48.2
Excessive non-revenue water % as established by the board
(Non-Revenue Water as Percent by Cost of Operating System)

Form Revised February 2013

95



Water Audit Report for:
Reporting Year:

All volumes to be entered as: MILLION GALLONS (US) PER YEAR

Master Meter and Supply Error Adjustments

WATER SUPPLIED Pcnt: Value:
Volume from own sources: n/a MG/Yr MG/Yr

Water imported: 10 63.997 MG/Yr MG/Yr
Water exported: n/a 0.000 MG/Yr MG/Yr

Enter negative % or value for under-registration
WATER SUPPLIED: 63.997 MG/Yr Enter positive % or value for over-registration

.
AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION

Billed metered: 10 42.558 MG/Yr
Billed unmetered: n/a 0.000 MG/Yr
Unbilled metered: n/a 0.000 MG/Yr Pcnt: Value:

Unbilled unmetered: 0.800 MG/Yr 1.25% MG/Yr

AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION: 43.358 MG/Yr

WATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Consumption) 20.639 MG/Yr

Apparent Losses Pcnt: Value:
Unauthorized consumption: 0.160 MG/Yr 0.25% MG/Yr

Customer metering inaccuracies: n/a 0.000 MG/Yr MG/Yr
Systematic data handling errors: 5 0.106 MG/Yr 0.25% MG/Yr

Apparent Losses: 0.266 MG/Yr

Real Losses (Current Annual Real Losses or CARL)
Real Losses = Water Losses - Apparent Losses: 20.373 MG/Yr

WATER LOSSES: 20.639 MG/Yr

NON-REVENUE WATER
NON-REVENUE WATER: 21.439 MG/Yr

= Water Losses + Unbilled Metered + Unbilled Unmetered

SYSTEM DATA

Length of mains: 9 44.5 miles
Number of active AND inactive service connections: 10 1,149

Service connection density: 26 conn./mile main

Yes
Average length of customer service line:

Average operating pressure: 10 65.0 psi

COST DATA

Total annual cost of operating water system: 10 $324,807 $/Year
Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses): 9 $7.30

Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses): 9 $148.72 $/Million gallons

 WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE:

 PRIORITY AREAS FOR ATTENTION:

     1: Unauthorized consumption

     2: Systematic data handling errors

     3: Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses)

 Based on the information provided, audit accuracy can be improved by addressing the following components:

$/1000 gallons (US)

                Default option selected for unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed             

*** YOUR SCORE IS: 90 out of 100 ***

A weighted scale for the components of consumption and water loss is included in the calculation of the Water Audit Data Validity Score

                   Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed

Average length of customer service line has been set to zero and a data grading score of 10 has been applied

Are customer meters typically located at the curbstop or property line? 

 AWWA Free Water Audit Software:
 Reporting Worksheet

       Default option selected for Unbilled unmetered - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed

2015 3/2014 - 2/2015
Holston Utility District  (0000074)

              <----------- Enter grading in column 'E' and 'J' ---------->

?
?

?

?

?

? Click to access definition

?
?

?

?

?

?

Please enter data in the white cells below. Where available, metered values should be used; if metered values are unavailable please estimate a value. Indicate your confidence in the accuracy of the 
input data by grading each component (n/a or 1-10) using the drop-down list to the left of the input cell. Hover the mouse over the cell to obtain a description of the grades

?

?
?

?

?

?

(length of service line, beyond the property 
boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility)

Use buttons to select
percentage of water 

supplied
OR

value

?Click here: 
for help using option 
buttons below

?

?

?

?

+

+ Click to add a comment

WAS v5.0

+
+

+
+

+

+

American Water Works Association.
Copyright © 2014, All Rights Reserved.

?
?
?

+

+
+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

?

To select the correct data grading for each input, determine the highest grade where 
the utility meets or exceeds all criteria for that grade and all grades below it.

Use Customer Retail Unit Cost to value real 

AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0 Reporting Worksheet      1
96



Water Audit Report for: Holston Utility District  (0000074)
Reporting Year:

System Attributes:
Apparent Losses: 0.266 MG/Yr

+              Real Losses: 20.373 MG/Yr
=            Water Losses: 20.639 MG/Yr

Unavoidable Annual Real Losses (UARL): See limits in definition MG/Yr

Annual cost of Apparent Losses: $1,945
Annual cost of Real Losses: $148,720 Valued at Customer Retail Unit Cost

Performance Indicators:

Non-revenue water as percent by volume of Water Supplied: 33.5%
Non-revenue water as percent by cost of operating system: 48.2% Real Losses valued at Customer Retail Unit Cost

Apparent Losses per service connection per day: 0.64 gallons/connection/day
Real Losses per service connection per day: N/A gallons/connection/day

Real Losses per length of main per day*: 1,254.28 gallons/mile/day
Real Losses per service connection per day per psi pressure: N/A gallons/connection/day/psi

From Above, Real Losses = Current Annual Real Losses (CARL): 20.37 million gallons/year

* This performance indicator applies for systems with a low service connection density of less than 32 service connections/mile of pipeline

 AWWA Free Water Audit Software:
 System Attributes and Performance Indicators

*** YOUR WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE IS: 90 out of 100 ***

Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) [CARL/UARL]:

2015 3/2014 - 2/2015

Return to Reporting Worksheet to change this assumpiton

?

?

American Water Works Association.
Copyright © 2014, All Rights Reserved.

WAS v5.0

Financial:

Operational Efficiency:

AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0 Performance Indicators      1
97



98



99



100



101



Petition 

102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



Customer Complaints 
 

1. Stroop v. Center Grove – Winchester Springs Utility District Pg. 119 
2. Hood v. Ocoee Utility District        Pg. 120 

118



119



Hood v. Ocoee Utility District 
1. Hood Complaint       Pg. 121 
2. Ocoee Utility District Motion to Dismiss  Pg. 150 
3. Hood Response       Pg. 196 
4. Ocoee Utility District Response to Complaint  Pg. 198 

120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



GEARHISER, PETERS, 
ELLIOTT & CANNON, PLLC 
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW 

320 McCallie Avenue 

Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402     

Telephone 423.756.5171 

Facsimile 423.266.1605 

www.gearhiserpeters.com 

E‐mail:  ghenry@gearhiserpeters.com 

*R. WAYNE PETERS

*ROBERT L. LOCKABY, JR.

SAM D. ELLIOTT

WADE K. CANNON

LEE ANN ADAMS

*BEVERLY S. EDGE

DAVID G. McDOWELL

*GARY L. HENRY

**ELEANOR G. LaPORTE

CORRIN P. FULTON

STACY H. FARMER

***DAVID W. HUNTER

JUSTIN B. FAITH

CHARLES J. GEARHISER (1938‐2013)

*ALSO ADMITTED IN GEORGIA

**ALSO ADMITTED IN MISSISSIPPI

***ALSO ADMITTED IN ALABAMA

March 31, 2016 

VIA E-MAIL TO Betsy.Knotts@cot.tn.gov AND U.S. MAIL 
Betsy Knotts, Esq. 
Assistant General Counsel 
Comptroller of the Treasury 
James K. Polk Building, Suite 1700 
505 Deaderick Street 
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 

Re: Informal Hearing Written Complaint by Martin Brown Construction Company, 
Inc. and Trinity Development Enterprises, LLC against Ocoee Utility District of 
Bradley and Polk Counties, Tennessee 

Dear Ms. Knotts: 

As you are aware from our prior correspondence, this firm represents Martin Brown Construc-
tion Company, Inc. (“Martin Brown”) and Trinity Development Enterprises, LLC (“Trinity”) 
with regard to the informal hearing complaint against Ocoee Utility District of Bradley and Polk 
Counties, Tennessee (“OUD”).  Martin Brown and Trinity’s informal complaint is scheduled to 
be heard by the Utility Management Review Board on April 7, 2016.  The purpose of this letter 
is to respond to the Motion to Dismiss that OUD submitted to the Board on March 18, 2016. 

The Motion to Dismiss is based on two grounds.  First, OUD claims that the request for an in-
formal hearing fails to comply with the written complaint and timing requirements under T.C.A. 
Section 7-82-702.  And second, OUD claims that a pending lawsuit between the parties with the 
Bradley County Chancery Court precludes the Board’s consideration of Martin Brown and Trini-
ty’s request for an informal hearing.  Both of these grounds will be addressed in turn. 

Because Martin Brown and Trinity submitted a written complaint to OUD and OUD never took 
any action on that complaint, Martin Brown and Trinity’s request for an informal hearing com-
plies in all respects with Section 7-82-702(a)(9).  Section 7-82-702(a)(9) provides, in relevant 
part, “The written complaint [with the Board] must be filed within thirty (30) days after the utili-
ty board has taken action upon a written complaint to the board of commissioners of the utility 
district.”  Tenn. Code Ann. § 7-82-702(a)(9) (2015) (emphasis added).   

In order to be heard by the OUD board of commissioners, OUD required Martin Brown and 
Trinity to submit a written complaint.  Martin Brown is in possession of that written complaint, 

196



GEARHISER, PETERS, ELLIOTT & CANNON, PLLC 

March 31, 2016 

Page 2 

but recently changed offices and could not locate the written complaint prior to the submission of 
this letter; upon locating the written complaint, Martin Brown and Trinity will supplement this 
letter with a copy of the written complaint submitted to OUD.  Regardless, a complaint was 
clearly before the OUD board of commissioners as evidenced by the October 21, 2015 minutes 
attached to the Motion to Dismiss, which confirm that Lonnie Hood of Martin Brown was pre-
sent and complained to the OUD board of commissioners.  Even if Martin Brown had not sub-
mitted a formal written complaint to OUD, OUD’s consideration of Martin Brown’s dissatisfac-
tion is a waiver of the technical requirement under Section 7-82-702(a)(9) that a written com-
plaint be submitted to OUD.  The written complaint requirement under Section 7-82-702(a)(9) is 
not a basis for dismissing Martin Brown and Trinity’s request for an informal hearing. 

In addition, the minutes of the October 21, 2015 meeting confirm that “[n]o action was taken [on 
Martin Brown and Trinity’s complaint].”  Section 7-82-702(a)(9) expressly requires that action 
be taken in order to trigger the thirty-day deadline for requesting an informal hearing.  Because 
OUD’s board of commissioners did not – and still has not – taken action on Martin Brown and 
Trinity’s complaint, the thirty-day deadline under Section 7-82-702(a)(9) has not been triggered, 
and Martin Brown and Trinity’s complaint is timely and properly before the Board. 

Finally, OUD claims that the pending litigation between the parties precludes the Board’s con-
sideration of Martin Brown and Trinity’s complaint.  There is nothing in Tennessee law in gen-
eral – or Section 7-82-702(a)(9) in particular – that prevents the Board from reviewing Martin 
Brown and Trinity’s complaint while the litigation is pending.  This is highlighted by the fact 
that the Motion to Dismiss cites no legal authority preventing the Board from acting on Martin 
Brown and Trinity’s complaint at this time.  The pending lawsuit, therefore, is not a basis for 
dismissing Martin Brown and Trinity’s complaint to the Board. 

We look forward to presenting this matter to the Board on April 7, 2016.  If you have any ques-
tions or need any additional information in the meantime, feel free to contact us. 

Very truly yours, 

Gary L. Henry  
For Gearhiser, Peters, Elliott & Cannon, PLLC 

cc: Donald L. Scholes, Esq. (via e-mail and U.S. mail) 
Mr. Lonnie Hood (via e-mail, w/enclosures)  

197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



Miscellaneous:
1. Conflict of Interest
2. Annual Water Loss Report
3. Complaint Statistics
4. Next UMRB Meeting
5. Open Discussion

266



UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD (THE “BOARD”) 
 MEMBER AND DESIGNEE STATEMENT AND DISCLOSURE 

Rule 1715-01-.03(2)(b)  provides that no Board member may participate in making a decision in any case involving a 
utility district in which the Board member has a financial interest, a conflict of interest as proscribed by State law or a 
contract of employment.  

In addition to the statutory provision, I understand the importance to avoid any action, whether or not specifically 
prohibited by statute or regulation, which might result in or create the appearance of: 

• Using public office for private gain; 

• Losing complete independence or impartiality; 

• Making a government decision outside of official channels; or  

• Affecting adversely the confidence of the public in the integrity of the government. 

I will avoid all known conflicts of interest, and to the extent I become aware of a conflict of interest in connection with 
any matter brought before the Board, I will disclose such conflict to the other Board members and other appropriate 
person(s) and will recuse myself from participating in any consideration of the matter. 

I hereby affirm that the answers given to the following questions are true and accurate to the best of my actual 
knowledge and belief: 

1. Are you employed by or hold an official relation to any utility district in Tennessee? 

 No 

 Yes – please explain: 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2. Do you or any of your family members, directly or indirectly, own any bonds, notes or other obligations 
of any utility district in Tennessee? 

 No 

 Yes, direct ownership – please list amounts, issues, maturities: 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Yes, indirect ownership – please explain the nature of ownership and degree to which you or your 
family members exercise control over investment decisions: 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

267



 

3. Are you or any of your family members employed by, have any financial interest in or hold any official 
relation to any entity that has contracted with or intends to contract with any utility district in 
Tennessee? 

 No 

 Yes - please explain: 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

4. Do you or any of your family members have an account for services from any utility district in 
Tennessee? 

 No 

 Yes – please provide names of such utility districts: 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________ _____________________,  
Signature Date 

_______________________________________________ 
Name (Type or Print) 

268



 

 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY 

DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT 
DIVISION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUDIT 

SUITE 1500 

JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING 
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE  37243-1402 

PHONE (615) 401-7841 

 

January 29, 2016 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Lieutenant Governor Ron Ramsey 
  Speaker of the Senate 
 

Representative Beth Harwell  
Speaker of the House of Representatives 

   
FROM: Jim Arnette, Director 
  Division of Local Government Audit 
 
SUBJECT: Water Loss Filing per Section 7-82-401(i) and 68-221-1010 (d)(3), 
  Tennessee Code Annotated 
 
Beginning in January 2013, the Utility Management Review Board and the Water and 
Wastewater Financing Board began requiring utility districts, cities and other water 
systems to use a water loss evaluation tool developed by the American Water Works 
Association (AWWA).  This tool produces a number of performance indicators and 
calculates a “validity score” based on information entered by system personnel. 
 
The attached spreadsheet presents one of the performance indicators and the validity score 
for each financial report received between January 1, 2013 and December 31, 2015.   
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me. 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Description of Data 
2. Schedule of Water Loss in Tennessee Local Governments 

 
cc:  Mr. Justin P. Wilson 
 Comptroller of the Treasury 
 
  

269



 

 

Description of Data  
Legislative Report Due February 1, 2016 
 
 
Non-Revenue Water as Percent by Cost of Operating System 
 
Non-Revenue water is defined as: 
the cost of water that is produced and/or purchased that does not produce any revenue for 
the system (non-revenue water).  It includes apparent losses, real losses, unbilled meter 
and unbilled unmetered amounts. 
 
Cost to operate the system is defined as: 
the costs for operations, maintenance and any annually incurred costs for long-term upkeep 
of the system, such as repayment of capital bonds for infrastructure expansion or 
improvement.  Typical costs include employee salaries and benefits, materials, equipment, 
insurance, fees, administrative costs and all other costs that exist to sustain the drinking 
water supply.  These costs should not include any costs to operate wastewater, biosolids or 
other systems outside of drinking water.  
 
The performance indicator “non-revenue water as a percent by cost of operating system” is 
determined by:  

(1) converting the non-revenue water, which is expressed in million gallons, to a 
monetary amount; and 

(2) calculating the cost to operate the system; 
(3) expressing the monetary cost of non-revenue water as a percentage of the cost to 

operate the system. 
 
Validity Score 
 
The validity score helps assess the reliability of the data that was used to produce the 
performance indicator.  The maximum validity score is 100.  The validity score is calculated 
based on data entered by system personnel.  The input data ranks the reliability input 
items based on specific criteria established by the American Water Works Association 
(AWWA). 
 
 
Excessive Water Loss 
 
The Utility Management Review Board and the Water and Wastewater Financing Board 
developed and adopted a phase-in schedule related to the definition of excessive water loss.  
A water system is deemed to have excessive water loss if it does not comply with the 
parameters for the applicable year the schedule is submitted. 
 
Validity Score of 65 or less (1/1/2013 to 12/31/2014) 

70 or less (1/1/2015 to 12/31/2016) 
75 or less (1/1/2017 to 12/31/2018) 
80 or less (1/1/2019 to 12/31/2020) 
 

Non-Revenue Water as Percent by Cost of Operating 
System of   30% or greater (1/1/2013 to 12/31/2014) 
   25% or greater (1/1/2015 to 12/31/2016) 
   20% or greater (1/1/2017 to 12/31/2018) 
   20% or greater (1/1/2019 to 12/31/2020) 

270



Division of Local Government Audit

Schedule of Water Loss in Tennessee Local Governments

Entity Name

Fiscal 
Year 
End

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Municipalities

1. Adamsville 6/30 (1) % (1) % 9.0 % 71 % 15.1 % 71 % (3) % (3) %

2. Alamo 6/30 (1) (1) 15.0 78 18.3 67 11.2 67

3. Alcoa 6/30 4.4 87 8.0  86 6.9 85 3.0 84
4. Alexandria 6/30 9.8 86 13.2 85 25.6 83 (3) (3)

5. Algood 6/30 8840.3 88 9.9 83 9.2 82 (3) (3)

6. Allardt 6/30 17.7 76 15.2 76 19.1 79 (3) (3)

7. Ashland City 6/30 19.5 79 21.0 77 26.8 77 (3) (3)

8. Athens 6/30 7.6 94 9.2 94 8.7 94 (3) (3)

9. Atoka 6/30 (1) (1) 0.8 90 0.9 96 1.2 94

10. Atwood 6/30 15.8 80 16.9 81 20.7 69 (3) (3)

11 Bartlett 6/30 (2) (2) 4.1 82 3.8 82 (3) (3)

12. Baxter 6/30 8.3 91 6.9 84 8.6 78 (3) (3)
13. Bell Buckle 6/30 3.9 82 8.5 79 2.3 79 (3) (3)

14. Bells 6/30 (1) (1) 17.6 68 5.6 67 (3) (3)

15. Benton 6/30 (1) (1) 9.5 81 15.2 76 9.7 58

16. Bethel Springs 6/30 7.0 84 10.5 83 6.9 83 (3) (3)

17. Big Sandy 6/30 9.6 82 10.0 82 8.7 75 (3) (3)

18. Bluff City 6/30 (1) (1) 12.0 77 16.9 69 5.7 72

19. Bolivar 6/30 (1) (1) 3.5 82 4.2 82 (2) (2)
20. Bradford 6/30 (1) (1) 6.1 84 8.0 69 (3) (3)

21. Brentwood 6/30 25.7 83 17.6 88 17.2 85 (3) (3)

22. Brighton 6/30 (1) (1) 0.6 68 5.1 66 7.0 66

23. Bristol 6/30 (1) (1) 11.2 90 15.4 91 (2) (2)
24. Bruceton 6/30 (1) (1) 8.8 80 12.0 77 (2) (2)

25. Byrdstown 6/30 (1) (1) 49.2 82 28.1 82 (3) (3)

26. Camden 6/30 (1) (1) 8.6 84 19.3 84 (3) (3)

27. Carthage 6/30 (1) (1) 13.2 79 14.6 80 (3) (3)

28. Celina 6/30 13.1 72 28.7 82 4.0 83 (3) (3)

As Reported in Annual Financial Audit Reports for the Fiscal Years Ended 2015, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Received During the Period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2015

Measurement Indicators

2014 2013

Measurement Indicators

2012

Measurement Indicators

2015

Measurement Indicators

271



Division of Local Government Audit

Schedule of Water Loss in Tennessee Local Governments

Entity Name

Fiscal 
Year 
End

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

As Reported in Annual Financial Audit Reports for the Fiscal Years Ended 2015, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Received During the Period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2015

Measurement Indicators

2014 2013

Measurement Indicators

2012

Measurement Indicators

2015

Measurement Indicators

Municipalities

29. Centerville 6/30 20.8 % 82 % 13.8 % 81 % 1.6 % 82 % (3) % (3) %

30. Chapel Hill 6/30 (1) (1) 19.5 68 12.1 66 (3) (3)

31. Clarksville 6/30 23.8 88 17.5 94 7.9 87 (3) (3)

32. Cleveland 6/30 13.1 82 12.3 82 7.8 82 (3) (3)

33. Clifton 6/30 3.3  84 16.6  83 15.3 81 (3) (3)

34. Clinton 6/30 3.3 84 5.3 80 8.1 87 (3) (3)
35. Collierville 6/30 2.6 76 1.5 75 1.7 75 (3) (3)

36. Collinwood 6/30 (1) (1) 86.8 68 7.4 46 (2) (2)

37. Columbia 6/30 1.1 87 6.7 78 6.6 78 (3) (3)
38. Cookeville 6/30 11.0 85 11.5 84 11.7 83 (3) (3)

39. Copperhill 6/30 (1) (1) 47.2 73 24.7 73 (2) (2)

40. Covington 6/30 (1) (1) 13.0 81 21.7 80 (3) (3)

41. Cowan 6/30 34.2 74 27.4 74 16.3 75 (3) (3)

42. Crossville 6/30 23.7 88 7.7 88 24.1 75 (3) (3)
43. Cumberland City 6/30 10.6 81.0 13.0 80 12.8 75 (3) (3)

44. Cumberland Gap 6/30 (1) (1) 30.4 81 26.4 82 42.3 66

45. Dandridge 6/30 (1) (1) 17.5 80 9.5 81 7.9 80

46. Dayton 6/30 (1) (1) 14.7 87 12.9 88 12.2 88
47. Decatur 6/30 (1) (1) 14.9 76 5.7 77 9.1 75

48. Decaturville 6/30 7.9 76 13.7 65 13.6 67 (3) (3)

49. Decherd 6/30 (1) (1) 15.4 76 20.2 79 (2) (2)

50. Dover 6/30 17.1 80 12.0 82 9.1 84 (3) (3)
51. Dresden 6/30 (1) (1) 19.3 72 13.4 71 8.6 71

52. Dunlap 6/30 (1) (1) 0.4 64 10.8 64 (2) (2)

53. Dyer 6/30 (1) (1) 9.9 81 10.0 70 (3) (3)

54. Dyersburg 6/30 (1) (1) 37876771.6 85 1.4 76 1.0 76

55. Eastview 6/30 (1) (1) 12.4 80 12.3 75 (3) (3)

56. Elizabethton 6/30 17.2 77 16.6 77 18.7 77 (3) (3)

272



Division of Local Government Audit

Schedule of Water Loss in Tennessee Local Governments

Entity Name

Fiscal 
Year 
End

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

As Reported in Annual Financial Audit Reports for the Fiscal Years Ended 2015, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Received During the Period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2015

Measurement Indicators

2014 2013

Measurement Indicators

2012

Measurement Indicators

2015

Measurement Indicators

Municipalities

57. Englewood 6/30 (1) % (1) % 27.0 % 82 % 15.5 % 69 % (2) % (2) %

58. Erin 6/30 26.3 83 35.1 81 32.3 80 (3) (3)

59. Erwin 6/30 (1) (1) 6.9 86 6.8 86 (3) (3)

60. Estill Springs 6/30 9.3 83 9.4 73 10.4 67 (3) (3)

61. Etowah 6/30 11.6 81 12.0 77 7.6 72 (2) (2)

62. Fayetteville 6/30 15.6 90 16.8 82 17.2 81 (3) (3)
63. Franklin 6/30 16.3 81 16.4 83 17.9 84 (3) (3)

64. Friendship 6/30 (1) (1) 24.9 82 27.1 68 (3) (3)

65. Friendsville 6/30 9.1 88 17.7 82 9.0 77 28.4 62

66. Gainesboro 6/30 24.4 84 39.3 83 25.1 83 (3) (3)

67. Gallatin 6/30 (1) (1) 7.4 84 4.4 79 (3) (3)

68. Gallaway 6/30 7.0 72 17.5 84 (2) (2) (3) (3)

69. Gates 6/30 (1) (1) (1) (1) 3.2 82 15.2 77
70. Gatlinburg 6/30 9.2 76 16.1 75 12.6 71 (3) (3)

71. Germantown 6/30 5.0 79 43.9 80 3.6 80 (3) (3)

72. Gibson 6/30 (1) (1) 15.2 78 8.7 77 (2) (2)

73. Gleason 6/30 (1) (1) 14.4 81 14.9 68 8.6 71

74. Grand Junction 6/30 (1) (1) 13.5 74 (2) (2) (2) (2)

75. Graysville 6/30 (1) (1) 10.4 90 (2) (2) (2) (2)

76. Greenbrier 6/30 (1) (1) (2) 82 2.1 79 (3) (3)
77. Greeneville 6/30 6.0 92 29.5 92 12.6 90 (3) (3)

78. Greenfield 6/30 (1) (1) 9.6 68 13.0 68 (3) (3)

79. Halls 6/30 (1) (1) 17.7 84 3.0 60 (3) (3)

80. Harriman 6/30 18.5 83                    21.2 80                    20.7 79                    (3) (3)
81. Henderson 6/30 11.2 71                    15.4 74                    14.7 71                    (3) (3)

82. Henning 6/30 (1) (1) 5.8 48 24.0 66                    1.3 42

83. Henry 6/30 (1) (1) 22.8 76                    20.3 75                    18.4 73

84. Hohenwald 6/30 25.3 83                    47.3 81                    48.0 81                    (3) (3)

273



Division of Local Government Audit

Schedule of Water Loss in Tennessee Local Governments

Entity Name

Fiscal 
Year 
End

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

As Reported in Annual Financial Audit Reports for the Fiscal Years Ended 2015, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Received During the Period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2015

Measurement Indicators

2014 2013

Measurement Indicators

2012

Measurement Indicators

2015

Measurement Indicators

Municipalities

85. Hollow Rock 6/30 (1) % (1) % 7.1 % 83                    % 6.7 % 73                    % (2) % (2) %

86. Hornsby 6/30 82.0 (2) 8.5 66                    (2) (2) (2) (2)

87. Humboldt 6/30 (1) (1) 5.2 82                    2.7 76                    (3) (3)

88. Huntingdon 6/30 (1) (1) 8.7 80                    12.6 77                    8.4 74

89. Huntland 6/30 (1) (1) 7.0 76                    8.0 75                    (3) (3)

90. Jamestown 6/30 (1) (1) 2.9 83                    17.6 84                    (3) (3)

91. Jasper 6/30 (1) (1) 11.5 77                    11.2 74                    (3) (3)
92. Jefferson City 6/30 (1) (1) 8.7 78                    0.0 71                    0.0 71

93. Jellico 6/30 (1) (1) 0.0 74                    32.2 74                    (3) (3)

94. Johnson City 6/30 9.0 77                    9.2 79                    8.5 77                    (3) (3)

95. Jonesborough 6/30 11.1 74                    11.3 75                    12.0 75                    (3) (3)

96. Kenton 6/30 (1) (1) 12.9 74                    22.2 70                    30.0 41

97. Kingsport 6/30 9.1 79                    8.4 79                    7.9 78                    (3) (3)

98. Kingston 6/30 (1) (1) 4.9 93                    15.7 94                    (3) (3)

99. Knoxville 6/30 10.2 94                    11.3 85                    10.4 88                    (3) (3)

100. Lafayette 6/30 18.6 72                    29.1 70                    28.3 68                    (3) (3)

101. LaFollette 6/30 4.7 90                    7.0 87                    11.9 82                    (3) (3)

102. LaGrange 6/30 (1) (1) 9.6 76                    11.2 72                    14.1 67

103. Lake City 6/30 (1) (1) 16.0 73                    21.3 79                    23.0 79

104. LaVergne 6/30 22.0 79                    5.4 75                    3.4 71                    (3) (3)

105. Lawrenceburg 6/30 10.7 83                    14.1 80                    28.2 83                    (3) (3)

106. Lebanon 6/30 (1) (1) 19.2 71                    19.1 71                    (2) (2)

107. Lenoir City 6/30 (1) (1) 14.1 71                    11.2 72                    15.3 62

108. Lewisburg 6/30 (1) (1) 8.3 84                    8.9 80                    (3) (3)
109. Lexington 6/30 (1) (1) 9.9 82                    14.8 87                    2.1 83

110. Linden 6/30 23.4 77                    56.4 65                    4.5 82                    (3) (3)

111. Livingston 6/30 (1) (1) 1.2 78                    1.1 78                    (2) (2)

112. Lobelville 6/30 9.4 73                    52.0 85                    3.0 85                    (3) (3)

274



Division of Local Government Audit

Schedule of Water Loss in Tennessee Local Governments

Entity Name

Fiscal 
Year 
End

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

As Reported in Annual Financial Audit Reports for the Fiscal Years Ended 2015, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Received During the Period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2015

Measurement Indicators

2014 2013

Measurement Indicators

2012

Measurement Indicators

2015

Measurement Indicators

Municipalities

113. Loretto 6/30 (1) % (1) % 14.2 % 74                    % 17.6 % 75                    % (2) % (2) %

114. Loudon 6/30 (1) (1) 11.0 75                    7.8 78                    15.0 78

115. Lynnville 6/30 10.9 81                    14.3 82                    21.7 82                    (3) (3)

116. Madisonville 6/30 16.8 84                    21.3 78                    19.3 67                    0.4 69

117. Manchester 6/30 (1) (1) 16.5 93                    19.9 92                    20.5 92

118. Martin 6/30 (1) (1) 8.8 84                    9.6 81                    (2) (2)

119. Mason 6/30 (1) (1) (1) (1) 10.6 73                    10.2 73

120. Maryville 6/30 5.8 78                    6.1 75                    5.6 70                    (3) (3)

121. Maury City 6/30 (1) (1) (1) (1) 9.2 67                    (3) (3)

122. Maynardville 6/30 (1) (1) 3.6 84                    8.9 85                    12.0 85

123. McEwen 6/30 (1) (1) 5.1 75                    21.3 74                    18.6 73
124. McKenzie 6/30 18.5 75                    16.3 72                    15.1 73                    (3) (3)

125. McLemoresville 6/30 3.3 73                    4.4 73                    2.7 59                    (3) (3)

126. McMinnville 6/30 (1) (1) 29.7 91                    36.6 82                    (3) (3)

127. Memphis 6/30 2.6 73                    5.5 71                    3.8 78                    (3) (3)
128. Michie 6/30 6.8 78                    20.6 71                    18.0 72                    (3) (3)

129. Middleton 6/30 7.6 83                    3065.3 69                    4.3 69                    (3) (3)

130. Milan 6/30 7.8 94                    14.2 94                    7.2 77                    (3) (3)

131. Millington 6/30 5.2 79                    2.3 65                    2.2 61                    (3) (3)

132. Monteagle 6/30 (1) (1) 9.8 76                    22.8 62                    (3) (3)

133. Monterey 6/30 48.5 82                    46.2 81                    1.5 81                    (3) (3)

134. Morristown 6/30 3.5 89                    4.9 86                    16.0 83                    (3) (3)

135. Moscow 6/30 (1) (1) 22.1 74                    (2) (2) (2) (2)

136. Mosheim 6/30 (1) (1) 18.8 73                    29.1 68                    (3) (3)

137. Mount Pleasant 6/30 (1) (1) 4.1 84                    8.3 86                    9.8 86

138. Mountain City 6/30 11.9 73                    10.6 72                    10.7 70                    (3) (3)
139. Munford 6/30 (1) (1) 2.1 71                    3.8 71                    3.9 69

140. Murfreesboro 6/30 10.0 81                    33.3 80                    14.7 73                    (3) (3)

275



Division of Local Government Audit

Schedule of Water Loss in Tennessee Local Governments

Entity Name

Fiscal 
Year 
End

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

As Reported in Annual Financial Audit Reports for the Fiscal Years Ended 2015, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Received During the Period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2015

Measurement Indicators

2014 2013

Measurement Indicators

2012

Measurement Indicators

2015

Measurement Indicators

Municipalities

141. New Johnsonville 6/30 6.6 % 83                    % 11.8 % 81                    % 28.5 % 81                    % 38.0 % 84 %

142. Newbern 6/30 (1) (1) 18.6 77                    4.3 70                    (3) (3)

143. Newport 6/30 24.0 80                    6.3 76                    5.0 76                    (3) (3)

144. Niota 6/30 (1) (1) 24.6 74                    20.0 77                    18.6 77

145. Norris 6/30 11.6 85                    8.9 85                    10.7 85                    (3) (3)
146. Oak Ridge 6/30 8.5 74                    12.8 75                    9.5 77                    11.5 75

147. Oakland 6/30 (1) (1) 5.1 66                    26.3 62                    39.0 62

148. Obion 6/30 (1) (1) 122.9 80                    19.1 74                    10.6 74

149. Oliver Springs 6/30 (1) (1) 12.6 77                    6.3 73                    9.7 69

150. Oneida 6/30 6.1 89                    13.8 77                    15.2 68                    (3) (3)

151. Paris 6/30 8.7 77                    13.8 78                    14.3 78                    (3) (3)

152. Parsons 6/30 9.2 85                    13.0 85                    26.3 85                    (3) (3)

153. Petersburg 6/30 (1) (1) 8.3 80                    4.8 79                    5.1 79

154. Pigeon Forge 6/30 11.1 80                    12.2 81                    13.7 81                    (3) (3)

155. Pikeville 6/30 (1) (1) 15.8 81                    22.8 83                    15.6 68

156. Piperton 6/30 5.7 84                    5.7 71                    (2) (2) (2) (2)

157. Portland 6/30 10.5 85                    11.6 85                    13.4 87                    (2) (2)

158. Pulaski 6/30 (1) (1) 10.7 74                    4.5 79                    (3) (3)
159. Puryear 6/30 (1) (1) 6.6 75                    10.1 70                    (3) (3)

160. Ramer 6/30 11.8 69                    11.8 69                    13.1 67                    12.7 67

161. Red Boiling Springs 6/30 2.4 83                    4.3 83                    3.2 83                    (3) (3)
162. Ridgely 6/30 7.6 78                    12.8 79                    12.9 67                    (3) (3)

163. Ripley 6/30 (1) (1) 6.4 70                    9.0 69                    (3) (3)

164. Rockwood 6/30 (1) (1) 35.9 77                    19.5 82                    14.7 83

165. Rogersville 6/30 (1) (1) 1.1 79                    1.6 80                    2.4 80

166. Rossville 6/30 (1) (1) 3.8 71                    3.6 80                    7.1 75

167. Rutherford 6/30 5.4 78                    14.4 77                    11.7 78                    7.9 66

168. Rutledge 6/30 (1) (1) 18.8 78                    17.2 78                    (2) (2)

276



Division of Local Government Audit

Schedule of Water Loss in Tennessee Local Governments

Entity Name

Fiscal 
Year 
End

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

As Reported in Annual Financial Audit Reports for the Fiscal Years Ended 2015, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Received During the Period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2015

Measurement Indicators

2014 2013

Measurement Indicators

2012

Measurement Indicators

2015

Measurement Indicators

Municipalities

169. Saint Joseph 6/30 22.9 % 81                    % 5.5 % 81                    % 10.6 % 77 % (2) % (2) %

170. Sardis 6/30 40.7 77                    6.4 73                    8.2 72                    (3) (3)

171. Savannah 6/30 (1) (1) 7.6 79                    7.8 79                    (3) (3)

172. Scotts Hill 6/30 10.5 81                    7.1 76                    12.0 70                    (3) (3)

173. Selmer 6/30 (1) (1) 8.3 83                    8.8 74                    (3) (3)

174. Sevierville 6/30 6.0 86                    6.3 87                    4.0 86                    5.0 84

175. Sharon 6/30 (1) (1) 8.7 83                    14.6 83                    (3) (3)

176. Shelbyville 6/30 (1) (1) 23.1 79                    24.9 79                    (3) (3)

177. Signal Mountain 6/30 (1) (1) 15.4 84                    11.4 80                    (3) (3)

178. Smithville 6/30 (1) (1) 23.8 87                    17.3 87                    (3) (3)

179. Smyrna 6/30 10.1 92                    17.9 91                    4.9 90                    (3) (3)
180. Somerville 6/30 (1) (1) 13.9 80                    19.7 76                    9.2 73

181. South Fulton 6/30 (1) (1) 22.9 67                    16.0 67                    11.0 80

182. South Pittsburg 6/30 (1) (1) 14.9 76                    2.7 78                    (3) (3)

183. Sparta 6/30 (1) (1) 2.6 81                    2.5 80                    2.4 77
184. Spencer 6/30 (1) (1) 15.1 80                    11.7 77                    (3) (3)

185. Spring City 6/30 (1) (1) 1.7 67                    7.5 71                    9.5 73

186. Spring Hill 6/30 (1) (1) 4.9 84                    5.2 73                    11.2 75

187. Springfield 6/30 10.6 70                    11.8 69                    38.0 67                    (3) (3)

188. Stanton 6/30 (1) (1) 11.9 74                    69.0 97                    (2) (2)

189. Sweetwater 6/30 44.4 81                    7.8 83                    7.8 83                    (3) (3)

190. Tellico Plains 6/30 (1) (1) 6.0 73                    8.3 60                    (3) (3)
191. Tennessee Ridge 6/30 3.6 78                    3.0 74                    14.7 71                    (3) (3)

192. Tiptonville 6/30 11.2 58                    8.9 58                    11.9 58                    (3) (3)

193. Toone 6/30 (1) (1) 11.1 69                    11.6 68                    10.6 68

194. Tracy City 6/30 (1) (1) 3.6 75                    4.5 68                    5.5 60

195. Trenton 6/30 (1) (1) 13.0 82                    15.6 76                    (3) (3)

196. Trezevant 6/30 (1) (1) 13.6 76                    15.5 79                    (3) (3)

277



Division of Local Government Audit

Schedule of Water Loss in Tennessee Local Governments

Entity Name

Fiscal 
Year 
End

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

As Reported in Annual Financial Audit Reports for the Fiscal Years Ended 2015, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Received During the Period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2015

Measurement Indicators

2014 2013

Measurement Indicators

2012

Measurement Indicators

2015

Measurement Indicators

Municipalities

197. Trimble 6/30 (1) % (1) % 7.8 % 73                    % 7.9 % 73                    % (2) % (2) %

198. Troy 6/30 (1) (1) 17.0 80                    18.6 79                    (3) (3) %

199. Tullahoma 6/30 (1) (1) 8.3 81                    9.8 80                    10.2 88
200. Union City 6/30 (1) (1) 6.5 81                    8.5 72                    7.0 71

201. Vanleer 6/30 6.6 83                    14.0 81                    32.5 83                    (3) (3)

202. Wartrace 6/30 73.2 81                    14.5 77                    20.1 77                    (3) (3)

203. Watertown 6/30 (1) (1) 7.9 77                    11.6 80                    8.7 81

204. Waverly 6/30 (1) (1) 10.9 76                    16.5 76                    (3) (3)
205. Waynesboro 6/30 (1) (1) 21.4 72                    29.7 75                    37.2 86

206. Westmoreland 6/30 21.5 82                    26.8 71                    30.7 61                    (3) (3)

207. White Pine 6/30 (1) (1) 8.0 72                    8.9 77                    (3) (3)

208. Whiteville 6/30 (1) (1) 14863.1 70                    26.2 67                    (3) (3)

209. Whitwell 6/30 (1) (1) 12.5 85                    10.8 82                    (3) (3)

210. Winchester 6/30 (1) (1) 11.7 85                    14.4 84                    28.7 88

211. Woodbury 6/30 23.6 82                    24.5 82                    41.3 82                    (3) (3)

Utility Districts

1. Alpha-Talbott Utility District 12/31 (1) % (1) % 16.2 % 86 % 12.6 % 87 % 17.2 % 87 %

2. Arthur-Shawanee Utility District 6/30 10.2 71 12.4 72 15.9 71 (3) (3)

3. Bangham Utility District 5/31 17.2 80 16.9 80 19.3 80 (3) (3)

4. Bean Station Utility District 8/31 (1) (1) 10.7 83 15.1 85 (3) (3)

5. Bedford County Utility District 6/30 9.5 80 7.4 77 6.7 81 (3) (3)

6. Belvidere Rural Utility District 9/30 (1) (1) 18.0 84 10.1 69 8.5 67

7. Big Creek  Utility District 2/28 6.6 83 5.6 82 6.9 78 (3) (3)

8. Bloomingdale Utility District 6/30 (1) (1) 5.2 88 5.5 92 (3) (3)

9. Blountville Utility District 6/30 (1) (1) 10.9 88 9.6 85 (3) (3)

10. Bon Aqua-Lyles Utility District 8/31 (1) (1) (2) 87                    7.3 83 (2) (2)

278



Division of Local Government Audit

Schedule of Water Loss in Tennessee Local Governments

Entity Name

Fiscal 
Year 
End

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

As Reported in Annual Financial Audit Reports for the Fiscal Years Ended 2015, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Received During the Period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2015

Measurement Indicators

2014 2013

Measurement Indicators

2012

Measurement Indicators

2015

Measurement Indicators

Utility Districts

11. Bon De Croft Utility District 6/30 (1) % (1) % 6.3 % 82 % 3.0 % 75 % (3) % (3) %

12. Bristol-Bluff City Suburban Utility District 7/31 (1) (1) 58.1 84 18.0 82 20.2 82

13. Brownlow Utility District 6/30 2.0 84 2.0 84 1.7 84 (3) (3)

14. Cagle-Fredonia Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 6.7 82 6.5 80 6.8 83

15. Calhoun-Charleston Utility District 9/30 (1) (1) 12.9 80 15.1 84 14.6 79

16. Carderview Utility District 6/30 4.2 71 3.1 71 4.1 68 3.3 71

17. Castalian Springs-Bethpage Utility District 8/31 15.5 84 15.5 80 13.8 80 (3) (3)

18. Cedar Grove Utility District 6/30 (1) (1) 9.4 80                    8.0 78 (3) (3)

19. Center Grove-Winchester Springs Utility District 9/30 (1) (1) 5.3 84 6.5 83 16.1 83

20. Chanute Pall Mall Utility District 6/30 3.6 81 8.0 83 13.8 83 (3) (3)

21. Cherokee Hills Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2)

22. Chuckey Utility District 6/30 (1) (1) 15.3 84 13.1 81 (3) (3)

23. Claiborne County Utility District 7/31 12.6 82 12.5 79 14.2 71 (3) (3)

24. Clarksburg Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 8.9 79 5.7 69 4.8 71

25. Clearfork Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 9.3 78 15.2 72 16.6 59

26. Cold Springs Utility District 8/31 (1) (1) 2.9 82 4.5 81 (3) (3)

27. Consolidated Utility District of Rutherford County 9/30 2.6 78 2.7 81 5.6 83 (3) (3)

28. Cookeville Boat Dock Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 19.0 82 20.4 87 13.7 84

29. Copper Basin Utility District 6/30 7.2 82 7.0 86 6.5 70 (3) (3)

30. Cordell Hull Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 10.6 86 13.5 87 8.1 84

31. County Wide Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 8.0 81 8.0 83 4.6 69

32. Crab Orchard Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 10.5 78 16.9 42 10.2 67

33. Crockett Mills Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 12.1 79 15.7 73 12.4 67

34. Cross Anchor Utility District 6/30 (1) (1) 18.1 82 16.5 81 (3) (3)

35. Cumberland Heights Utility District 7/31 (1) (1) 10.2 84 10.5 83 (3) (3)
36. Cumberland Utility District 9/30 (1) (1) 12.7 91 20.7 92 14.7 91

37. Cunningham Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 9.6 91 11353.8 93 0.1 93

38. Dekalb Utility District 6/30 14.7 85 13.3 89 11.8 85 (3) (3)

279



Division of Local Government Audit

Schedule of Water Loss in Tennessee Local Governments

Entity Name

Fiscal 
Year 
End

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

As Reported in Annual Financial Audit Reports for the Fiscal Years Ended 2015, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Received During the Period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2015

Measurement Indicators

2014 2013

Measurement Indicators

2012

Measurement Indicators

2015

Measurement Indicators

Utility Districts

39. Dewhite Utility District 12/31 (1) % (1) % 11.8 % 84 % 13.8 % 77 % 19.8 % 77 %
40. Double Springs Utility District 4/30 11.6 87 4.7 86 9.8 83 (3) (3)

41. Dry Run Utility District 9/30 (1) (1) 17.0 75 37.9 75 (3) (3)

42. Dyersburg Suburban Utility District 1/31 (1) (1) 10.2 69 10.9 66 10.9 66

43. East Fork Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 3.8 79 11.6 77 7.6 73
44. East Montgomery Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 12.1 87 11.5 93 10.7 94

45. East Sevier County Utility District 6/30 (1) (1) 11.0 76 36.4 57 52.5 58

46. Eastside Utility District 10/31 (1) (1) 17.3 81 15.8 82 14.6 82

47. Fairview Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 6.6 81 7.6 79 9.0 79

48. Fall Creek Falls Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 16.9 85 15.5 82 14.0 83

49. Fall River Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 7.3 75 3.5 80 12.7 78

50. Fentress County Utility District 6/30 1.5 80 1.2 80 1.0 80 (3) (3)

51. First Utility District of Carter County 10/31 (1) (1) 5.7 88 5.1 82 (2) 81

52. First Utility District of Hardin County 3/31 15.8 87 14.7 78 15.2 77 (3) (3)

53. First Utility District of Hawkins County 6/30 (1) (1) 8.4 80 11.3 78 (3) (3)

54. First Utility District of Knox County 12/31 (1) (1) 4.1 85 8.0 79 6.7 75

55. First Utility District of Tipton County 12/31 (1) (1) 5.1 79 7.2 75 5.3 75

56. Gladeville Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 6.9 79 8.0 80 7.9 77

57. Glen Hills Utility District 6/30 5.0 80 5.6 88 4.8 90 (3) (3)

58. Grandview Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 14.6 82 9.1 70 7.8 67

59. Griffith Creek Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 6.0 85 8.8 82 5.2 79

60. H.B. and T.S. Utility District 9/30 (1) (1) 10.4 85                    11.1 85 10.0 85

61. Hallsdale-Powell Utility District 3/31 11.9 72 12.8 75 12.4 72 (3) (3)
62. Hampton Utility District 11/30 16.5 82 14.3 82 8.0 79 40.9 63

63. Harbor Utility District 6/30 16.0 70 12.1 71 4.7 71 (3) (3)

64. Harpeth Valley Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 3.8 77 3.2 71 4.5 68

65. Hartsville-Trousdale Water/Sewer Utility District 6/30 35.5 67 20.2 66 20.6 66 19.0 69

66. Haywood County Utility District 6/30 (1) (1) 11.5 84 31.4 97 29.7 97

280



Division of Local Government Audit

Schedule of Water Loss in Tennessee Local Governments

Entity Name

Fiscal 
Year 
End

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

As Reported in Annual Financial Audit Reports for the Fiscal Years Ended 2015, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Received During the Period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2015

Measurement Indicators

2014 2013

Measurement Indicators

2012

Measurement Indicators

2015

Measurement Indicators

Utility Districts

67. Hendersonville Utility District 6/30 6.9 % 94 % 10.0 % 95 % 4.4 % 95 % (3) % (3) %

68. Hillsville Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 6.6 77 6.2 76 14.9 73
69. Hixson Utility District 4/30 10.5 85 15.2 86 4.2 81 (3) (3)

70. Holston Utility District 2/28 48.2 90 11.1 82 9.6 82 (3) (3)

71. Hornbeak Utility District 4/30 2.3 81 2.6 83 1.9 78 (3) (3)

72. Huntsville Utility District 8/31 5.0 82 6.4 82 8.3 84 6.9 73

73. Intermont Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 8.9 84 10.5 83 15.1 83

74. Iron City Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 6.1 81 6.3 86 0.7 86

75. Jackson County Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) (2) 80 14.4 79 13.9 75

76. Knox-Chapman Utility District 2/28 10.3 81 11.7 82 14.2 82 (3) (3)

77. Laguardo Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 12.6 82 7.3 83 7.8 80

78. Lakeview Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 3.5 77 2.7 74 3.8 74

79. Leoma Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 7.5 80 6.9 66 (2) (2)

80. Lone Oak Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 12.4 76 11.3 84 15.6 87
81. Luttrell-Blaine-Corryton Utility District 7/31 7.1 87 6.2 89 5.6 82 (3) (3)

82. Madison Utility District of Davidson County 6/30 27.5 94 29.3 94 3.2 87 (3) (3)

83. Mallory Valley Utility District 9/30 (1) (1) 0.4 96 0.5 97 (3) (3)

84. Martel Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 6.1 86 5.3 91 (2) (2)

85. Mid-Hawkins County Utility District 6/30 (1) (1) 3.7 76 3.7 77 (3) (3)

86. Milcrofton Utility District 9/30 (1) (1) 8.5 97 13.0 94 10.0 94

87. Minor Hill Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) (1) (1) 16.8 73 15.3 53

88. Mooresburg Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 2.9 81 17.5 62 (2) (2)

89. Mowbray Utility District 5/31 (1) (1) (1) (1) 26.5 80 (3) (3)

90. New Canton Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 16.2 80 12.9 83 (3) (3)

91. New Market Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 11.9 75 15.3 82 13.8 82

92. Nolensville-College Grove Utility District 9/30 (1) (1) 20.4 90 8.8 84 9.8 83

93. North Overton Utility District 5/31 10.0 84 9.9 83 17.2 83 (3) (3)

94. North Stewart Utility District 5/31 14.0 84 10.3 80 11.2 71 (3) (3)

281



Division of Local Government Audit

Schedule of Water Loss in Tennessee Local Governments

Entity Name

Fiscal 
Year 
End

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

As Reported in Annual Financial Audit Reports for the Fiscal Years Ended 2015, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Received During the Period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2015

Measurement Indicators

2014 2013

Measurement Indicators

2012

Measurement Indicators

2015

Measurement Indicators

Utility Districts

95. North Utility District of Decatur & Benton Counties 3/31 7.2 % 84 % 5.5 % 72 % 9.9 % 70 % (3) % (3) %

96. North Utility District of Rhea County 9/30 (1) (1) 5.9 79 10.0 74 6.6 67

97. North West Utility District 8/31 4.9 86 9.0 79 5.6 75 (3) (3)

98. Northeast Henry County Public Utility District 6/30 (1) (1) 8.6 71 12.6 72 (3) (3)

99. Northeast Knox Utility District 1/31 2.8 82 3.8 82 4.1 82 (3) (3)

100. Northeast Lawrence Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 5.6 76 16.1 78 14.4 76

101. Northwest Clay Utility District 8/31 (1) (1) 12.5 72 12.1 70 12.4 68.0

102. Northwest Dyersburg Utility District 6/30 (1) (1) (1) (1) 6.4 69 (3) (3)

103. Northwest Henry Utility District 6/30 (1) (1) 15.1 74 8.3 72 (3) (3)

104. Ocoee Utility District 6/30 4.4 88 7.3 85 9.0 88 9.2 88

105. O'Connor Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 20.6 83 19.1 82 16.6 80

106. Old Gainesboro Road Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 11.4 90 10.4 90 9.2 90

107. Old Knoxville Highway Utility District 6/30 (1) (1) 17.8 76 18.2 86 (3) (3)

108. Perryville Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 0.6 80 3.7 82 6.5 82

109. Persia Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 12.4 90 11.8 90 4.8 97

110. Plateau Utility District 6/30 7.6 82 13.0 83 4.4 76 (3) (3)

111. Pleasant View Utility District 11/30 (1) (1) 10.8 78 10.2 77 11.1 75

112. Poplar Grove Utility District 6/30 3.9 86 3.7 86 5.9 80 (3) (3)

113. Quebeck-Walling Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 10.2 84 10.8 75 10.8 80

114. Reelfoot Utility District 6/30 (1) (1) 1.5 71 1.1 69                    1.8 69

115. Riceville Utility District 6/30 6.4 82 7.5 83 8.7 83 (3) (3)
116. River Road Utility District 6/30 18.1 94 16.3 93 10.6 94 (3) (3)

117. Roan Mountain Utility District 3/31 24.0 89 7.4 76 40.9 63 (3) (3)

118. Roane Central Utility Distirct 6/30 (1) (1) 12.6 85 2.6 86 13.5 84

119. Russellville-Whitesburg Utility District 6/30 11.0 91 13.4 89 13.6 89 (3) (3)
120. Sale Creek Utility District 5/31 (1) (1) (1) (1) 6.2 71 (3) (3)

121. Saltillo Utility District 10/31 (1) (1) 9.5 69 11.1 69 8.7 66

122. Samburg Utility District 1/31 23.7 72 26.1 67 32.5 65 (3) (3)

123. Savannah Valley Utility District 4/30 10.3 93 6.9 89 18.5 84 (3) (3)

282



Division of Local Government Audit

Schedule of Water Loss in Tennessee Local Governments

Entity Name

Fiscal 
Year 
End

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

As Reported in Annual Financial Audit Reports for the Fiscal Years Ended 2015, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Received During the Period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2015

Measurement Indicators

2014 2013

Measurement Indicators

2012

Measurement Indicators

2015

Measurement Indicators

Utility Districts

124. Second South Cheatham Utility Distirct 7/31 4.5 % 88 % 4.1 % 90 % 5.6 % 88 % (3) % (3) %

125. Sewannee Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 6.2 81 8.0 83 11.2 77

126. Shady Grove Utility District 9/30 (1) (1) 12.1 88 11.6 84 (3) (3)

127. Siam Utility District 1/31 5.0 81 7.3 73 14.9 72 (3) (3)

128. Smith Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 3.6 83 5.5 80 2.8 81

129. Sneedville Utility District 3/31 6.2 76 6.1 76 5.8 69 (2) (2)

130. South Blount Utility District 6/30 2.1 93 1.7 93 3.1 96 (3) (3)

131. South Bristol-Weaver Pike Utility District 11/30 (1) (1) 18.5 92 21.3 82 17.0 82

132. South Cumberland Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 7.8 79 8.5 79 9.6 79

133. South Elizabethton Utility District 2/28 15.5 83 16.0 73 17.4 73 (3) (3)

134. South Giles Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) (1) (1) 10.6 75 17.8 69

135. South Side Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 9.2 81 0.9 69 0.9 69

136. Spring Creek Utility District of Hardeman County 6/30 (1) (1) 8.1 66 7.9 54 (3) (3)
137. Springville Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 1.4 85 4.0 85 4.0 85

138. Summertown Utility District 6/30 20.0 75 21.4 75 21.1 70 8.6 68

139. Surgoinsvile Utility District 4/30 13.4 72 11.7 68 12.1 66 (3) (3)

140. Sylvia Tennessee City Pond Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 10.7 88 14.5 87 15.9 86

141. Tarpley Shop Utility District 6/30 10.8 84 12.2 85 23.1 83 (3) (3)

142. Tuckaleechee Utility District 6/30 (1) (1) 21.7 86 29.7 86 20.2 84

143. Twenty Five Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 18.8 84 14.8 81 16.1 81

144. Unicoi Water Utility District 9/30 22.3 83 15.8 83 15.8 88 (2) (2)

145. Union Fork-Bakewell Utility District 6/30 3.9 86 4.2 86 9.6 80 (3) (3)

146. Walden's Ridge Utility District 8/31 (1) (1) 5.8 89 9.1 92 (3) (3)
147. Warren County Utility District 6/30 (1) (1) 4.5 92 4.8 86 (3) (3)

148. Watts Bar Utility District 9/30 (1) (1) 3.7 67 4.2 67 3.3 67

149. Webb Creek Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 4.9 82 5.3 84 4.9 77

150. West Cumberland Utility District 6/30 13.0 88 14.0 83 13.0 86 (3) (3)

151. West Knox Utility District 6/30 5.5 87 3.9 88 4.5 89 (3) (3)

283



Division of Local Government Audit

Schedule of Water Loss in Tennessee Local Governments

Entity Name

Fiscal 
Year 
End

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

As Reported in Annual Financial Audit Reports for the Fiscal Years Ended 2015, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Received During the Period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2015

Measurement Indicators

2014 2013

Measurement Indicators

2012

Measurement Indicators

2015

Measurement Indicators

Utility Districts

152. West Overton Utility District 12/31 (1) % (1) % 14.8 % 89 % 17.1 % 94 % 2.0 % 94 %
153. West Point Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 4.3 80 7.9 78 20.0 76

154. West Stewart Utility District of Stewart County 6/30 3.3 52 - - - - - -

155. West Warren-Viola Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 4.9 87 2.4 83 3.0 83

156. West Wilson Utility District 5/31 2.6 83 3.7 82 4.3 81 (3) (3)
157. White House Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 10.4 92 11.5 91 11.2 90

158. Witt Utility District 9/30 (1) (1) 616.9 72 4.4 70 10.3 74

159. Woodlawn Utility District 12/31 (1) (1) 12.2 84 17.5 85 8.8 85

Counties

1. Lincoln County 6/30 19.0 % 75 % 33.3 % 70 % 15.9 % 68 % (2) % (2) %

Metropolitan Governments

1. Metro Lynchburg-Moore County 6/30 7.2 % 77 % 10.9 % 76 % 8.9 % 71 % (3) % (3) %

2. Metro Nashville-Davidson County 6/30 11.3 82 20.0 80 9.0 79 (3) (3)

Other Governmental Entities

1. Adams-Cedar Hill Water System 6/30 10.5 % 87 % 5.4 % 83 % 3.7 % 82 % (3) % (3) %
2. Anderson County Water Authority 6/30 3.7 83 6.1 85 7.3 84 (3) (3)

3. Brownsville Energy Authority 6/30 (1) (1) 20.6 67 0.4 100 (3) (3)

4. Caryville-Jacksboro Utility Commission 6/30 3.7 94 3.1 96 2.1 95 (3) (3)

5. Cunningham-East Montgomery Water Treatment 12/31 (1) (1) 0.0 99 0.0 97 0.0 97

6. Dowelltown-Liberty Waterworks 6/30 23.2 84 25.5 85 0.6 85 (3) (3)

7. Duck River Utility Commission 6/30 0.0 91 0.0 86 0.0 72 (2) (2)

8. Gibson County Municipal Water District 11/30 (1) (1) 8.7 74 7.8 73 6.2 74

9. Hiwassee Utilities Commission 6/30 (1) (1) 24.9 93 3.6 90 (3) (3)

10. Jackson Energy Authority 6/30 4.0 91 6.1 90 5.9 90 (3) (3)

284



Division of Local Government Audit

Schedule of Water Loss in Tennessee Local Governments

Entity Name

Fiscal 
Year 
End

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

Non-Revenue 
Water 

Percentage

Validity 
Score 

Percentage

As Reported in Annual Financial Audit Reports for the Fiscal Years Ended 2015, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Received During the Period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2015

Measurement Indicators

2014 2013

Measurement Indicators

2012

Measurement Indicators

2015

Measurement Indicators

Other Governmental Entities

11. Lauderdale County Water System 6/30 (1) % (1) % 8.6 % 67 % 9.7 % 69 % (3) % (3) %

12. Marshall County Board of Public Utilities 6/30 9.2 72 6.4 72 9.2 71 (3) (3)

13. Maury County Board of Public Utilities 6/30 11.7 76 10.6 73 7.3 73 (3) (3)

14. Tellico Area Services System 6/30 4.2 91 4.6 90 3.8 92 (3) (3)

15. Watauga River Regional Water Authority 6/30 0.8 82 0.2 86 5.9 86 3.7 83

16. Water Authority of Dickson County 6/30 (1) (1) 11.1 84 18.7 83 18.1 83

17. Wilson County Water & Wastewater Authority 6/30 (1) (1) 5.7 82 4.8 83 (3) (3)

Footnotes:

(1)  As of December 31, 2015, the annual financial audit report had not been filed with our office.

(2)  The schedule of water loss was incomplete, illegible, inaccurate, in an old format, or not included in the local government's annual financial audit report; therefore, the indicators are not available for this 
        year.

(3)  The annual financial audit report was received prior to January 1, 2013; therefore the American Water Works Association (AWWA) reporting format was not applicable for this fiscal year.  

(4)  A border of a single line indicates that the water system was referred due to technical issues as described in footnote (2).

(5)  A border of a double line indicates the water system was referred due to either the validity score and/or the non-revenue water as a percent by cost of operating system exceeding the parameters set by the 

       board.

285



Complaint Statistics 

December 4, 2015 – March 31, 2016 

 

Complaints Received by Phone: 21 

Complaints Received by Email: 1  

 

286



Next Regularly 
Scheduled UMRB 

Meeting 
 

June 2, 2016 

287


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Bangham History File 04072016.pdf
	history file

	Blank Page
	Lakeview Packet 04072016.pdf
	Lakeview UD 1
	Lakeview UD 2
	Lakeview UD 3
	Lakeview UD 4
	Lakeview UD 5

	Lakeview Packet 04072016.pdf
	Lakeview UD 1
	Lakeview UD 2
	Lakeview UD 3
	Lakeview UD 4
	Lakeview UD 5

	Lakeview UD History File 04072016.pdf
	History file

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Water Loss Package February 2016 Final.pdf
	Water Loss Memo February 2016 Final
	2016 Legislative Water Loss Report 1-29-2016 FINAL

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



